
IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OHIO 

EASTERN DIVISION AT CLEVELAND 

 

KIM GIBSON 

16405 Sunny Glenn Ave. 

Cleveland, OH 44128 

 

and 

 

LAWRENCE FARRELL 

1401 Priory Circle 

Wintergarden, FL 34787 

 

Plaintiffs, individually and on 

behalf of all others similarly 

situated,  

 

v. 

 

U.S. BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION 

c/o Andrew Cecere, C.E.O. 

800 Nicollet Mall 

Minneapolis, MN 55402 

 

Defendant. 

Case No.  

 

 

 

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT FOR 

DAMAGES 

 

JURY DEMAND ENDORSED HEREIN 

 

Plaintiffs Kim Gibson (“Gibson”) and Lawrence Farrell (“Farrell”) (collectively, 

“Plaintiffs”), each individually, and on behalf of all others similarly situated, by and through 

counsel, and for their Class Action Complaint for Damages against Defendant U.S. Bank, National 

Association (“U.S. Bank” or “Defendant”) state as follows: 

PARTIES, JURISDICTION, AND VENUE 

1. Plaintiff Gibson is a natural person residing in Cuyahoga County, Ohio. 

2. Plaintiff Farrell is a natural person residing in Wintergarden, Florida. 

3. Defendant is a federal depository institution incorporated under the laws of the 

State of Delaware, and, upon belief, maintains its principal place of business at 800 Nicollet Mall, 

Minneapolis, MN 55402.  
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4. U.S. Bank does business in the state of Ohio and is licensed to do business in the 

state of Ohio as a foreign corporation.  

5. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction over this action under 28 U.S.C. § 1331. 

6. Venue is proper in this District, pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391, because Defendant 

solicited business in this District, Plaintiff Gibson is a resident of this District, and a substantial 

part of the events or omissions giving rise to Plaintiff Gibson’s claims occurred in this District. 

THE REAL ESTATE SETTLEMENT PROCEDURES ACT AND REGULATION X 

7. The Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act (“RESPA”)—12 U.S.C. §§ 2601, et 

seq.—permits a borrower (or an agent of a borrower) to submit a “qualified written request” 

requesting an error regarding a “federally related mortgage loan” to be corrected1 or requesting 

information relative to such a loan to any servicer of such a loan.2 12 U.S.C. § 2605(e)(1).  

8. RESPA provides that upon receipt of a qualified written request, “a servicer of 

a federally related mortgage loan…shall provide a written response acknowledging receipt of the 

correspondence within 5 days (excluding legal public holidays, Saturdays, and Sundays) unless 

the action requested is taken within such period.”  12 U.S.C. § 2605(e)(1)(A). 

9. Regarding NOEs, RESPA provides that “not later than 30 days (excluding legal 

public holidays, Saturdays, and Sundays) after the receipt from any borrower of any qualified 

written request…the servicer shall…make appropriate corrections in the account of the borrower, 

including the crediting of any late charges or penalties, and transmit to the borrower a written 

notification of such correction” or after conducting an investigation “provide the borrower with a 

written explanation or clarification that includes…a statement of the reasons for which the servicer 

believes the account of the borrower is correct” either of which such notice “shall include the name 

                                                           
1 Hereinafter, these qualified written requests shall be referred to as Notices of Error, or “NOEs. 
2 Hereinafter, these qualified written requests shall be referred to as Requests for Information, or “RFIs.  
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and telephone number of a representative of the servicer who can provide assistance to the 

borrower.” 12 U.S.C. § 2605(e)(2); 12 U.S.C. § 2605(e)(2)(A); 12 U.S.C. § 2605(e)(2)(B)(i)-(ii). 

10. Regarding RFIs, RESPA provides that “not later than 30 days (excluding legal 

public holidays, Saturdays, and Sundays) after the receipt from any borrower of any qualified 

written request… the servicer shall…provide the borrower with a written explanation or 

clarification that includes” the “information requested by the borrower or an explanation of why 

the information requested is unavailable or cannot be obtained by the servicer; and the name and 

telephone number of an individual employed by, or the office or department of, the servicer who 

can provide assistance to the borrower.” 12 U.S.C. § 2605(e)(2); 12 U.S.C. § 2605(e)(2)(C); 12 

U.S.C. § 2605(e)(2)(C)(i)-(ii). 

11. Further, specifically regarding RFIs requesting the identity and contact information 

of the owner or assignee of the loan, RESPA provides that a servicer of a federal related mortgage 

loan shall not fail to respond to such a request within ten (10) business days. 12 U.S.C. § 

2605(k)(1)(D).  

12. In January 2013, the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau (“CFPB”) issued final 

rules concerning mortgage markets in the United States, pursuant to the authority granted by the 

Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act—Public Law No. 111-203, 124 

Stat. 1376 (2010)—which amended RESPA. 

13. The CFPB’s RESPA Mortgage Servicing Final Rules—known as “Regulation X” 

and codified as 12 C.F.R. § 1024—were issued on January 17, 2013 and became effective on 

January 10, 2014. 

14. Through Regulation X, the CFPB has provided guidance for the interpretation of 

the foregoing RESPA provisions. 
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15. Relative to NOEs, Regulation X provides that “[a] servicer shall comply with the 

requirements of this section for any written notice from the borrower that asserts an error and that 

includes the name of the borrower, information that enables the servicer to identify the borrower's 

mortgage loan account, and the error the borrower believes has occurred…A qualified written 

request that asserts an error relating to the servicing of a mortgage loan is a notice of error for 

purposes of this section, and a servicer must comply with all requirements applicable to a notice 

of error with respect to such qualified written request.” 12 C.F.R. § 1024.35(a). 

16. Relative to NOEs, Regulation X provides that a servicer must respond to an NOE 

by either “[c]orrecting the error or errors identified by the borrower and providing the borrower 

with a written notification of the correction, the effective date of the correction, and contact 

information, including a phone number, for further assistance” or “[c]onducting a reasonable 

investigation and providing the borrower with written notification that includes a statement that 

the servicer has determined that no error occurred, a statement of the reason or reasons for this 

determination, a statement of the borrower’s right to request documents relied upon by the servicer 

in reaching its determination, information regarding how the borrower can request such 

documents, and contact information, including a phone number, for further assistance.” 12 C.F.R. 

§ 1024.35(e)(1). 

17. Relative to RFIs, Regulation X provides that “a servicer shall comply with the 

requirements of this section for any written request for information from a borrower that includes 

the name of the borrower, information that enables the servicer to identify the borrower’s mortgage 

loan account, and states the information the borrower is requesting with respect to the borrower’s 

mortgage loan.” 12 C.F.R. § 1024.36(a). 
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18. 12 C.F.R. § 1024.36(d)(1) provides that a servicer must respond to an RFI by either 

“[p]roviding the borrower with the requested information and contact information, including a 

telephone number, for further assistance in writing” or “[c]onducting a reasonable search for the 

requested information and providing the borrower with a written notification that states that the 

servicer has determined that the requested information is not available to the servicer, provides the 

basis for the servicer's determination, and provides contact information, including a telephone 

number, for further assistance.” 

19. While much of Regulation X expanded the scope of information and errors about 

which borrowers could submit RFI and NOEs, Regulation X also provides for additional 

restrictions and requirements that borrowers have to abide by in sending RFIs and NOEs in order 

to trigger a servicer’s obligation to respond, notably, a servicer may, by written notice provided to 

a borrower, establish an address that a borrower must use to submit a request for information or 

notice of error in accordance with the procedures in this section. The notice shall include a 

statement that the borrower must use the established address to request information or assert an 

error. If a servicer designates a specific address for receiving information requests, the servicer 

shall designate the same address for receiving notices of error, and if a servicer designates a 

specific address for receiving notices of error, the servicer shall designate the same address for 

receiving information requests. A servicer shall provide a written notice to a borrower before any 

change in the address used for receiving an information request or notice of error. A servicer that 

designates an address for receipt of information requests or notices of error must post the 

designated address on any website maintained by the servicer if the website lists any contact 

address for the servicer. 12 C.F.R. § 1024.35(c); 12 C.F.R. § 1024.36(b).  

STATEMENT OF FACTS 
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20. U.S. Bank is a mortgage “servicer” as defined by 12 C.F.R. § 1024.2(b) and 12 

U.S.C. § 2605(i)(2). U.S. Bank is the current servicer of Plaintiffs’ and Class Members’ notes and 

mortgages on real property that secure those notes (collectively referred to hereinafter as the 

“Loans”). 

21. The Loans are each a “federally related mortgage loan” as defined by RESPA and 

Regulation X. 12 U.S.C. § 2602(1); 12 C.F.R. § 1024.2(b). 

22. U.S. Bank is subject to the requirements of RESPA and Regulation X, and does not 

qualify for the exception for “small servicers”—as defined by 12 C.F.R. § 1026.41(e)(4)—nor for 

the exemption for a “qualified lender”—as defined by 12 C.F.R. § 617.7000. 

23. Plaintiffs and Class Members submitted RFIs and/or NOEs to U.S. Bank, each of 

which were “qualified written requests,” as that term is defined by 12 U.S.C. § 2605(e)(1)(B). 

24. At all times relevant to this Complaint since January 31, 2019, U.S. Bank 

voluntarily continued to mandate that borrowers send any RFIs and NOEs to the following address 

they designated for the receipt of such, pursuant to their authority to do so under 12 C.F.R. § 

1024.35(c) and 12 C.F.R. § 1024.36(b): 

U.S. Bank 

Attention: Escalation Center 

P.O. Box 21977 

Eagan, MN 55121 

 

(the “Designated Address”).  

25. From January 31, 2019 until at least March 11, 2019, U.S. Bank still listed the 

Designated Address as the address to which RFIs and NOEs “must be directed” by borrowers on 

its website. A printout of U.S. Bank’s website denoting the Designated Address 

(https://www.usbank.com/mortgage/existing-customer.html) (the “Webpage”), accessed on March 

11. 2019, is attached as Exhibit A.  
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26. As directed by U.S. Bank, Plaintiffs and Class Members submitted each of their 

RFIs and NOEs to U.S. Bank at the Designated Address.  

27. The Post Office Box listed in the Designated Address was closed due to “the rental 

fee being past due” on and since January 31, 2019.  “The mail should have been returned upon 

arrival.”  The Post Office Box clerk has been instructed “to return these certified mail pieces back 

to the sender, box closed no forward on file”. A copy of a response from a Supervisor at the United 

States Postal Service (“USPS”) to an inquiry (Case ID 142067699) submitted by or on behalf of 

Attorney Whitney Kaster of DannLaw regarding various RFIs and NOEs sent to the Designated 

Address is attached as Exhibit B.  

28. In short, the Designated Address is a Post Office Box that is no longer operational 

and contains no forwarding address on file. See Exhibit B. 

FACTS RELEVANT TO PLAINTIFF GIBSON 

29. On or about February 5, 2019, Plaintiff Gibson, through counsel, sent an NOE to 

U.S. Bank at the Designated Address via U.S. Certified Mail (“Gibson NOE #1”). A copy of the 

Gibson NOE #1 is attached as Exhibit C.  

30. On or about February 7, 2019, U.S. Bank sent a mortgage statement to Plaintiff 

Gibson confirming the Designated address by stating that she was required to send any RFI or 

NOE to the Designated Address (“Gibson’s February Statement”). A copy of Gibson’s February 

Statement is attached as Exhibit D.  

31. On or about February 28, 2019, Plaintiff Gibson sent an NOE to U.S. Bank at the 

Designated Address via U.S. Certified Mail (“Gibson NOE #2”). A copy of the Gibson NOE #2 is 

attached as Exhibit E.  
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32. The Gibson NOE #1 and Gibson NOE #2 (collectively, the “Gibson NOEs”) were 

valid notices of error as defined by 12 C.F.R. § 1024.35(a), and therefore, were valid qualified 

written requests.  

33. Prior to sending each of the Gibson NOEs, Gibson, through counsel, verified the 

Designated Address by accessing Defendant’s Webpage.  

34. Despite Plaintiff Gibson sending each of the Gibson NOEs to U.S. Bank at the 

Designated Address, and such letters arriving at the Designated Address, Plaintiff Gibson received 

no written acknowledgment or response to the Gibson NOEs. 

35. Plaintiff Gibson will not receive any written acknowledgment or response to the 

Gibson NOEs since such correspondence is to be returned to Plaintiff Gibson, as the Designated 

Address is no longer valid and U.S. Bank did not establish a forwarding address. See Exhibit B.  

36. Plaintiff Gibson has suffered harm from U.S. Bank’s actions, as it required her to 

incur costs—such as postage expenses and attorneys’ fees—to send the Gibson NOEs to the 

Designated Address as mandated by U.S. Bank when U.S. Bank knew or should have known that 

such address was not valid and that Plaintiff Gibson would never receive a response to the Gibson 

NOEs, in essence, inviting Plaintiff Gibson to unnecessarily waste time and money on an 

impossibly fruitless effort. 

FACTS RELEVANT TO PLAINTIFF FARRELL 

37. On or about February 20, 2019, Plaintiff Farrell, through counsel, sent three (3) 

RFIs to U.S. Bank at the Designated Address via Certified U.S. Mail, including an RFI seeking 

information about the identity of the creditor or assignee of Plaintiff Farrell’s loan (“Farrell RFI 

#1”), information regarding loss mitigation efforts related to Plaintiff Farrell’s loan (“Farrell RFI 

#2”), and information related generally to the servicing of Plaintiff Farrell’s loan (“Farrell RFI #3) 
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(collectively, the “Farrell RFIs”). A copy of each of the Farrell RFIs is attached as Exhibit F, 

Exhibit G, and Exhibit H, respectively.  

38. Prior to sending each of the Farrell RFIs, Farrell, through counsel, verified the 

Designated address by accessing Defendant’s Webpage.  

39. Despite Plaintiff Farrell sending each of the Farrell RFIs to U.S. Bank at the 

Designated Address, and such letters arriving at the Designated Address, Plaintiff Farrell received 

no written acknowledgment or response to the Farrell RFIs. 

40. Plaintiff Farrell will not receive any written acknowledgment or response to the 

Farrell RFIs since such correspondence is to be returned to Plaintiff Farrell, as the Designated 

Address is no longer valid and U.S. Bank did not establish a forwarding address. See Exhibit B.  

41. Plaintiff Farrell has suffered harm from U.S. Bank’s actions, as it required him to 

incur costs—such as postage expenses and attorneys’ fees—to send the Farrell RFIs to the 

Designated Address as mandated by U.S. Bank when U.S. Bank knew or should have known that 

such address was not valid and that Plaintiff Farrell would never receive a response to the Farrell 

RFIs, in essence, inviting Plaintiff Farrell to unnecessarily waste time and money on an impossibly 

fruitless effort. 

CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS 

42. Class Definition: Plaintiffs bring this action pursuant to Fed R. Civ. P. 23 on behalf 

of a class of similarly situated individuals and entities (the “Class”), defined as follows: 

All loan borrowers in the United States (1) who submitted to U.S. 

Bank a “qualified written request,” as defined by 12 U.S.C. § 

2605(e)(1)(B), in the form of a Request for Information or Notice of 

Error which arrived at P.O. Box 21977, Eagan, MN 55121, on or 

after January 31, 2019, and (2) to whom U.S. Bank failed to provide 

a written acknowledgement of receipt of or a response to such a 

qualified written request due to such address no longer being in 

operation. 
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43. Numerosity: Upon information and belief, the Class is comprised of more than 40 

members. This conclusion is reasonable because U.S. Bank is one of the largest mortgage 

providers and servicers in the country, and has reported servicing mortgages worth approximately 

$295,000,000,000 as of the first quarter of 2018, $60,000,000,000 of which were internally 

originated by U.S. Bank3, and U.S. Bank notified Plaintiffs and Class members for at least over 

(1) month to send all RFIs and NOEs to an address which was no longer in operation meaning that 

no such correspondence sent during this time would receive a written acknowledgment or response 

from Defendant. The Class is so numerous that joinder of all members is impractical. The exact 

number of members in the Class is presently unknown, can only be ascertained through discovery, 

and can easily be identified through Defendant’s records or by other means.  

44. Commonality and Predominance: All members of the Class have been subject to 

and affected by a uniform course of conduct: specifically, U.S. Bank notifying Plaintiffs and Class 

members for at least over (1) month to send all RFIs and NOEs to an address which was no longer 

in operation meaning that no such correspondence sent during this time received a written 

acknowledgment or response from Defendant. There are questions of law and fact common to the 

proposed Class that predominate over any individual questions. 

45. Typicality: Plaintiffs’ claims are typical of the claims of the Class. Plaintiffs and 

Class members were denied information to which they were entitled because Defendant unlawfully 

failed to provide an acknowledgement or response due to Defendant advising borrowers to send 

any RFIs and NOEs to a defunct address causing Plaintiffs and Class members to incur damages 

as a result. 

                                                           
3 U.S. Bancorp Is The Only Major U.S. Bank Still Reporting Mortgage Servicing Growth, Forbes, June 8, 2018, 

https://www.forbes.com/sites/greatspeculations/2018/06/08/u-s-bancorp-is-the-only-major-u-s-bank-still-reporting-

mortgage-servicing-growth/#32b247cdba20 (last visited March 11, 2019). 
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46. Adequacy: Plaintiffs will adequately represent the interests of the Class and do not 

have adverse interests to the Class. If individual Class members prosecuted separate actions, it 

may create a risk of inconsistent or varying judgments that would establish incompatible standards 

of conduct. A class action is the superior method for the quick and efficient adjudication of this 

controversy. Plaintiffs’ counsel have extensive experience litigating consumer class actions. 

COUNT ONE:  

VIOLATIONS OF 12 U.S.C. § 2605(e)(1)(A) AND 12 C.F.R. §§ 1024.35(d) and 1024.36(c)  

(on behalf Plaintiffs and the Class) 

(Failure to send written acknowledgment of receipt of qualified written requests) 

 

47. Plaintiffs repeat and reallege paragraphs one (1) through forty-six (46) with the 

same force and effect as though fully set forth herein. 

48. Plaintiffs and Class members submitted RFIs and NOEs, each of which were a 

“qualified written request” as defined by 12 U.S.C. § 2605(e)(1)(B), to U.S. Bank at the Designated 

Address.  

49. Plaintiffs’ and Class members’ NOEs alleged that U.S. Bank committed specific 

errors related to their loans as enumerated in 12 C.F.R. §§ 1024.35(b)(1)-(11), pursuant to 12 C.F.R. 

§ 1024.35. 

50. Plaintiffs’ and Class members’ RFIs requested specific information related to their 

loans, pursuant to 12 C.F.R. § 1024.36. 

51. U.S. Bank failed to provide written acknowledgment of Plaintiffs’ and Class 

members’ RFIs and NOEs within five (5) business days of receipt—that is, within five (5) business 

days of arrival at the Designated Address—as required by 12 U.S.C. § 2605(e)(1)(A) and 12 C.F.R. 

§§ 1024.35(d) and 1024.36(c).  

52. U.S. Bank’s failure to provide written acknowledgment of Plaintiffs’ and Class 

members’ RFIs and NOEs within five (5) business days of receipt constitutes clear violations of 
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the requirements of 12 U.S.C. § 2605(e)(1)(A), as interpreted by 12 C.F.R. §§ 1024.35 and 

1024.36. 

53. Plaintiffs and Class members were harmed because they incurred the expenses 

associated with sending RFIs and NOEs—such as their time, postage, etc.—but did not receive 

the written acknowledgements of receipt to which they were legally entitled, pursuant to RESPA 

and Regulation X and, since the Designated Address is inoperable, they have no expectation to 

receive such acknowledgment in the future. 

54. As U.S. Bank can (and did) mandate the address to which borrowers must submit 

RFIs and NOEs, by mandating that such correspondence be sent to a defunct address, U.S. Bank 

is evading its legal obligations and has effectively stripped borrowers of their rights to submit RFIs 

and NOEs within and subject to the protective framework of RESPA.  

55. U.S. Bank’s actions are believed to be the continuation of a pattern and practice of 

behavior in conscious disregard of the Plaintiffs’ and Class members’ rights. 

56. As a result of U.S. Bank’s actions, U.S. Bank is liable to Plaintiffs and Class 

members for actual damages, statutory damages, costs, and attorney fees. 12 U.S.C. § 2605(f)(2)-

(3). 

 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs KIM GIBSON and LAWRENCE FARRELL, individually, and 

on behalf of the Class, pray for an Order as follows:  

A. Finding that this action satisfies the prerequisites for maintenance as a class 

action and certifying the Class defined herein; 

 

B. Designating Plaintiffs as representatives of the Class and their undersigned 

counsel as Class Counsel; 
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C. Entering judgment in favor of Plaintiffs and the Class and against 

Defendant; 

 

D. Awarding Plaintiffs and the Class their actual damages, statutory damages 

as allowed under RESPA, and punitive damages;  

 

E. Awarding Plaintiffs and the Class attorneys’ fees and costs, including 

interest thereon, as allowed or required by law; and,  

 

F. Granting all such further and other relief as this Court deems just and 

appropriate. 

 

COUNT TWO:  

VIOLATIONS OF 12 U.S.C. § 2605(e)(1)(A) AND 12 C.F.R. §§ 1024.35(d) and 1024.36(c)  

(on behalf Plaintiffs and the Class) 

(Failure to provide written responses to qualified written requests) 

 

57. Plaintiffs repeat and reallege paragraphs one (1) through forty-six (46) with the 

same force and effect as though fully set forth herein. 

58. Plaintiffs and Class members submitted RFIs and NOEs, each of which were a 

“qualified written request” as defined by 12 U.S.C. § 2605(e)(1)(B), to U.S. Bank at the Designated 

Address.  

59. Plaintiffs’ and Class members’ NOEs alleged that U.S. Bank committed specific 

errors related to their loans as enumerated in 12 C.F.R. §§ 1024.35(b)(1)-(11), pursuant to 12 C.F.R. 

§ 1024.35. 

60. Plaintiffs’ and Class members’ RFIs requested specific information related to their 

loans, pursuant to 12 C.F.R. § 1024.36. 

61. U.S. Bank failed to provide a substantive written response to Plaintiffs’ and Class 

members’ RFIs and NOEs within the applicable timeframes of ten (10) or thirty (30) business days 

of receipt—that is, within ten (10) or thirty (30) business days of arrival at the Designated 

Address—as required by 12 U.S.C. § 2605(e)(1)(A) and 12 C.F.R. §§ 1024.35(e) and 1024.36(d).  
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62. U.S. Bank’s failure to provide a substantive written response to Plaintiffs’ and Class 

members’ RFIs and NOEs within the applicable timeframes of ten (10) or thirty (30) business days 

of receipt constitutes clear violations of the requirements of 12 U.S.C. §§ 2605(e)(2) and 

2605(k)(1)(D), as interpreted by 12 C.F.R. §§ 1024.35 and 1024.36. 

63. Plaintiffs and Class members were harmed because they incurred the expenses 

associated with sending RFIs and NOEs—such as their time, postage, etc.—but did not receive 

the information or responses to which they were legally entitled, pursuant to RESPA and 

Regulation X and, since the Designated Address is inoperable, they have no expectation to receive 

such information or responses in the future. 

64. As U.S. Bank can (and did) mandate the address to which borrowers must submit 

RFIs and NOEs, by mandating that such correspondence be sent to a defunct address, U.S. Bank 

is evading its legal obligations and has effectively stripped borrowers of their rights to submit RFIs 

and NOEs within and subject to the protective framework of RESPA.  

65. U.S. Bank’s actions are believed to be the continuation of a pattern and practice of 

behavior in conscious disregard of the Plaintiffs’ and Class members’ rights. 

66. As a result of U.S. Bank’s actions, U.S. Bank is liable to Plaintiffs and Class 

members for actual damages, statutory damages, costs, and attorney fees. 12 U.S.C. § 2605(f)(2)-

(3). 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs KIM GIBSON and LAWRENCE FARRELL, individually, and 

on behalf of the Class, pray for an Order as follows:  

A. Finding that this action satisfies the prerequisites for maintenance as a class 

action and certifying the Class defined herein; 
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B. Designating Plaintiffs as representatives of the Class and their undersigned 

counsel as Class Counsel; 

 

C. Entering judgment in favor of Plaintiffs and the Class and against 

Defendant; 

 

D. Awarding Plaintiffs and the Class their actual damages, statutory damages 

as allowed under RESPA, and punitive damages;  

 

E. Awarding Plaintiffs and the Class attorneys’ fees and costs, including 

interest thereon, as allowed or required by law; and,  

 

F. Granting all such further and other relief as this Court deems just and 

appropriate. 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

/s/ Marc E. Dann    

Marc E. Dann (0039425) 

Brian D. Flick (0081605) 

Daniel M. Solar (0085632) 

DANNLAW 

P.O. Box. 6031040 

Cleveland, Ohio 44103 

Office:  (216)373-0539 

Facsimile: (216)373-0536  
notices@dannlaw.com  

 

Thomas A. Zimmerman, Jr. (pro hac vice anticipated) 

tom@attorneyzim.com 

ZIMMERMAN LAW OFFICES, P.C. 
77 W. Washington Street, Suite 1220 

Chicago, Illinois 60602 

(312) 440-0020 telephone 

(312) 440-4180 facsimile  

www.attorneyzim.com  

 

Counsel for Plaintiffs Kim Gibson and Lawrence 

Farrell 
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JURY DEMAND 

Plaintiffs hereby request a trial by jury on all issues. 

/s/ Marc E. Dann    

Marc E. Dann (0039425) 

Brian D. Flick (0081605) 

Daniel M. Solar (0085632) 

Counsel for Plaintiffs Kim Gibson and Lawrence 

Farrell 
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Find Your Routing Number

Order Checks

View CD Rates

Find Mortgage Help & Repayment
Options

Access REO (Bank-Owned) Properties

Customer Favorites

About U.S. Bank Customer Service Locations en Español

Home Mortgage U.S. Bank Mortgage Customers

Find the right mortgage for your first home.
Talk to a U.S. Bank Home Mortgage Loan Officer today
to get started.

Need help getting through the process?
Call 877-303-1640 today to get started.

 Equal Housing Lender

Loan approval is subject to credit approval and program guidelines. Not all loan programs are available in all states for all loan amounts. Interest rate and
program terms are subject to change without notice.

U.S. Bank Mortgage Customers
We’re here to serve you.
Customer service is our first priority. As a U.S. Bank mortgage customer, you can access your account online, see current rates and
learn more about the mortgage products we have to offer.

Manage My Mortgage Account
Log in to your account to view your statements, pay your mortgage online and manage your account options.

Log In to My Mortgage Account
Pay My Mortgage Online

Interested in Refinancing?
Refinancing your current mortgage could result in a lower interest rate, a reduction in loan term or cash at closing. It’s also an
opportunity to switch to a different type of mortgage. Learn more at Refinance Your Home.

Purchase a Home
Thinking about purchasing a new home, a vacation home or investment property? We have a number of mortgage products for you
to consider.

Making Home Affordable
The Making Home Affordable program allows eligible borrowers to refinance or modify their mortgage loans, resulting in more
affordable payments. U.S. Bank Home Mortgage is participating in the program and fully supports efforts to help families to lower
monthly mortgage payments and/or to avoid foreclosure and remain in their homes.
Avoid Mortgage Scams

Resources for Existing Customers
Making Home Affordable
Mortgage Help and Repayment Options

Notices of Error and Requests for Information
Borrowers have certain rights under Federal law related to resolving errors and requesting information about their mortgage account.
Notices of Error and Requests For Information must be directed to U.S. Bank, Attention: Escalation Center, P.O. Box #21977, Eagan,
MN 55121. Your submission must be in writing and include the name of each borrower, the loan number and a description of the
error you believe has occurred OR a request for specific information regarding your mortgage loan.

Service 800-365-7772

Already a Customer?

Access your mortgage information
online, seven days a week, 24 hours
a day.

Log In to your MortgageLog In to your MortgageLog In to your Mortgage
AccountAccountAccount

Mortgage Help and Repayment
Options

Rates & Products

See today's rates. Rates and products
may vary by location.

30 YR Fixed Rate
15 YR Fixed Rate
30 YR FHA

See Mortgage Products

Personal Small Business Commercial & Government Search

Log In

Online & Mobile
Banking

Checking 
 & Savings

Credit Cards
 & Prepaid Cards

Mortgage
 & Refinance

Loans &
 Lines of Credit

Investing &
Wealth Management
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3/11/2019 DannLaw Mail - Response to your recent inquiry (Case ID 142067699) (KMM59217380V97931L0KM)

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0?ik=ae1fdf6c05&view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-f%3A1627282967128073951%7Cmsg-f%3A16272829671280… 1/1

Whitney Horton <whorton@dannlaw.com>

Response to your recent inquiry (Case ID 142067699) (KMM59217380V97931L0KM)
1 message

eCustomerCare National <ECCADUSER@usps.gov> Wed, Mar 6, 2019 at 1:46 PM
To: Whitney Kaster <notices@dannlaw.com>

Dear Whitney,

I regret learning of the inconvenience you have experienced with the Certified mail service.

This P.O. Box has been closed due to the rental fee being past due (01/31/2019). The mail should have been returned
upon arrival. I have instructed the box clerk to return these certified mail pieces back to the sender, box closed no forward
on file.

 Please accept our sincere apology for any inconvenience this matter may have caused you. For further questions or
information regarding this matter please contact the Eagan Post Office at 651-202-4953.

  Sincerely,

Rich
Supervisor
55121STPAULMNMANAGER@USPS.GOV

**********
Your privacy is important to us. If you would like additional information on our privacy policy, please visit us online at:
usps.com

EXHIBIT B 
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Illinois I New Jersey New York Ohio 

216-373-0539

Telephone

February 5, 2019 

U.S. Bank 
Attn: Escalation Center 
P.O. Box 21977 
Eagan, MN 55121 

Notice@DannLaw.com 

Email 

*Sent via Certified Mail return receipt requested [7014 2120 0003 0670 3840 J

In the Matter of: 

Borrower's Name: 
Property Address: Glenn Ave., Cleveland, OH 44128 
Mortgage Account No.: 

**If responding to this correspondence by e-mail, please send to notices@dannlaw.com 

II 
216-373-0536

Fax

Re: Notice of error pursuant to 12 C.F.R. §1024.35(b)(11) for failure to properly respond to a 
request for information in compliance with 12 C.F.R. §1024.36 

Dear Sir or Madam: 

Please consider this letter to constitute a "notice of error" under 12 C.F.R. § 1024.35 of Regulation X 
of the Mortgage Servicing Act under the Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act (RESPA). The 
written authority of the above-referenced borrower (the "Borrower") to our law firm for this 
communication is enclosed for you reference and review and is incorporated herein by this reference. 

You must acknowledge receipt of this notice within five (5) business days thereof. You must send 
your response(s) to this notice within thirty (30) business days of receipt thereof. 

On or about November 16, 2018, the Borrower sent a letter captioned "Request for Information 
Pursuant to 12 C.F.R. § 1024.36" (the "RPI") to U.S. Bank via Certified U.S. Mail [Receipt No.: 
7014 2120 0003 0668 3197]. A copy of the RPI is enclosed for your reference. 

U.S. Bank sent correspondence in response to the RFI dated December 5, 2018 (the "Response"). 
The Response was deficient to respond to the RPI as it failed to provide copies of any and all 
servicing notes related to U.S. Bank's servicing of the above-referenced mortgage loan since January 
10, 2014. 

There are very limited circumstances when a mortgage loan servicer is not required to provide 
information related to the servicing of a mortgage loan requested by and through a request for 
information issued pursuant to 12 C.F.R. § 1024.36. 

Mailing Address 
PO Box 6031040 
Cleveland, OH 44103 

Dann Law.corn 
877-475-8100
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February 5, 2019 
Page2 1!11 

Specifically, 12 C.F.R. § 1024.36(f)(l )  provides that a servicer does not have to comply with 12 
C.F.R. § 1024.36(c) or 12 C.F.R. § 1024.36(d) if the request seeks substantially the same information
as a prior request, the information sought is confidential, proprietary, or privileged, the information is
not directly related to a borrower's specific mortgage loan account, or the request is overbroad or
unduly burdensome. Moreover, 12 C.F.R. § 1024.36(f)(2) provides that:

If a servicer determines that, pursuant to this paragraph (f), the 
servicer is not required to comply with the requirements of paragraphs 
( c) and ( d) of this section, the servicer shall notify the borrower of its
determination in writing not later than five days (excluding legal
public holidays, Saturdays, and Sundays) after making such
determination. The notice to the borrower shall set forth the basis
under paragraph (f)(l) of this section upon which the servicer has
made such determination.

By and through the Response, U.S. Bank generally stated "[a]dditional information or documents 
you requested may be considered internal/confidential information and/or not relevant to an 
individual mortgage loan or the servicing thereof; therefore, a subpoena would be required to release 
such information." 

It is improper for U.S. Bank to claim that the requested information is proprietary or confidential 
such as to permit U.S. Bank to refrain from providing the requested information. Comment I to 12 
C.F .R. § 1024.36(f)(l )(ii) provides illustrative examples as to what constitutes confidential,
proprietary, or privileged information for the purposes of requests for information pursuant to 12
C.F.R. § 1024.36:

Confidential, proprietary or privileged information may include 
information requests relating to, for example: 

1. Information regarding management or profitability of a
servicer, including information provided to investors in the
servicer.

ii. Compensation, bonuses, or personnel actions relating to
servicer personnel, including personnel responsible for
servicing a borrower's mortgage loan account;

iii. Records of examination reports, compliance audits, borrower
complaints, and internal investigations or external
investigations; or

iv. Information protected by the attorney-client privilege

None of the unfulfilled requests bear any resemblance to the types of requests for which the 
Consumer Financial Protection Bureau provides guidance as to what constitutes a request that seeks 
proprietary information. To the extent that proprietary information may be included within some of 
the information and/or documents requested by and through the RFI, such information and/or 
documentation can be withheld and/or redacted. The fact that some such information may be 
contained within such documents does not wholly absolve U.S. Bank of their obligation to produce 

Mailing Address 
PO Box 6031 040 
Cleveland, OH 44103 

Dannlaw.com 

877-475-8100
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Febrwuy 5, 2019 
Page 3 

information contained within such documents that is not proprietary. That is, for example, to the 
extent that servicing notes may contain proprietary information, such information may be redacted, 
but the fact that some information in the servicing notes may be proprietary does not allow for U.S. 
Bank to refuse to provide any of the servicing notes for the loan as requested. 

Regarding relevancy, it is unfathomable as to how U.S. Bank would be able to reasonably claim that 
items such as servicing notes are not relevant to U.S. Bank's servicing business or specifically as to 
the Borrower's mortgage loan account specifically referenced in the RFI. 

In short, U.S. Bank has failed to provide any justifiable reason as to why they do not need to supply 
the remaining outstanding information and documentation requests by and through the RFI. 

Wherefore, the Borrower hereby alleges that U.S. Bank's actions, in failing to provide all of the 
information requested by and through the RFI, constitute a willful violation of 12 C.F.R. § 1024.36. 
The Borrower further asserts that US. Bank's actions. as such. constitute an error in the servicing of 
the Borrower's mortgage loan account pursuant to 12 C.F.R. � 1024.35(b)(l l). 

As such, the Borrower hereby demands that U.S. Bank provide all the information and/or 
documentation requested by and through the RF!, or, in the alternative, specifically provide a valid 
justification as to why U.S. Bank will not supply the information requested by and through each of 
the requests in the RFI. 

Please correct this error as described herein and provide us with notification of the correction, the 
date of the correction, and contact information for further assistance; or after conducting a reasonable 
investigation and providing the Borrower, through our firm, with a notification that includes a 
statement that the servicer has determined that no error occurred, a statement of the reason or reasons 
for this determination, a statement of the Borrower's right to request documents relied upon by the 
servicer in reaching its determination, information regarding how the Borrower can request such 
documents, and contact information for further assistance. 

Please also remit funds for restitution to the Borrower including but not limited to reimbursement of 
legal fees and expenses incurred in the preparation and sending of this notice. 

�
rely, 

.. O -t��e��u 
o/tney E. 

o
ter (_'.71 

Enclosures 

Mailing Address 
PO Box 6031040 
Cleveland, OH 44103 

Dannlaw.com 

877-475-8100
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Dann 
Law 

In the Matter of:

Illinois I New Jersey I New York I Ohio I Oregon 

Telephone: 216-373-0539 

Facsimile: 216-373-0536 

Email: Notices@DannLaw.com 

Borrower(s): ___ K_im_G_ib_s_o_n ______________________ _

Property Address: 16405 Sunny Glen Avenue Cleveland OH 44128

Mortgage Loan No.:

Re: Written Consent/Authorization for Requests for Information &: Notices of Error 

To Whom It May Concern:

I/We, the borrower(s), do hereby authorize and provide our written consent and authorization for
US Bank the Servicer of the above-referenced loan, to fully

cooperate with, comply with, and provide any and all information requested or demanded by and through
any and all Requests for Information and/or Notices of Error pertaining to our loan, pursuant to the Real
Estate Settlement and Procedures Act (Regulation X) and/or the Truth in Lending Act (Regulation Z) which
may be sent by Attorneys on our behalf. Said counsel represents us in any and all pending or contemplated
legal matters concerning the above-referenced loan. Please respond to any and all such Requests and Notices
at the following address:

DannLaw
P.O. Box 6031040, Cleveland, OH 44103

K.iM Gib1>on Signed: __________________ Date: 11/06/2018 

Print Name: Kim Gibson

Signed: __________________ Date: 11/06/2018

Print Name: ----------------------------------

Mailing Address 
PO Box 6031040 
Cleveland, Ohio 44103 

Dannlaw.com 

[877] 4 75-8100
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November 16, 2018 

U.S.Bank 

Illinois I New Jersey I New York I Ohio I Oregon 

Attn: Consumer Advocacy 
P.O. Box 21977 
Eagan, MN 55121 

*Sent via Certified Mail return receipt requested {7014 2120 0003 0668 3197}

In the Matter of: 

Borrower's Name: 

Telephone: (216) 373-0539 

Facsimile: (216) 373-0536 

Email: notjces@dannlaw com 

Property Address: Glenn Ave., Cleveland, OH 44128 
Mortgage Account No.: 

"'"'If responding to this correspondence by e-mail, please send to notices@dannlaw.com 

Re: Request for Information Pursuant to 12 C.F.R. § 1024.36 

Dear Sir or Madam: 

This is a Request for Information related to your servicing of the above-referenced mortgage loan. All 
references herein are to Regulation X of the Mortgage Servicing Act as amended by the Consumer 
Financial Protection Bureau pursuant to the Dodd Frank Act, The written authority of the 
above-referenced borrower ( the "Borrower") for this request to our law firm is enclosed. 

Pursuant to 12 C.F.R. § 1024.36(c}, you must provide our office with a written response 
acknowledging your receipt of this request within jive (i) buslness days of such. Pursuant to 12 C.F.R. 
§ 1024.36(d)(ii}(2)(B}, you must provide the information .requested herein, infra, wi'thin thirty {30)
business days of your receipt of this request.

Please provide the following information within the time periods noted herein: 

1. An exact reproduction of the life of loan mortgage transaction history for this loan from the
contract system of record from your electronic software program for this loan. For purposes of
identification, the life of loan transaction history means any software program or system by
which the servicer records the current mortgage balance, the receipt of all payments; the
assessment of any late fees or charges, and the recording of any corporate advances for any fees
or charges including but not limited to property inspection fees, broker price opinion fees,

Mailing Address: 
P.O. Box 6031040, Cleveland, OH 44103 

dannlawcom 
(877) 475-8100
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legal fees, escrow fees, processing fees, technology fees, or any other collateral charge. Also, to 
the extent this life of loan transaction history includes in numeric or alpha-numeric codes, 
please attach a complete list of all such codes and state in plain English a short description for 
each such code. 

2. Copies of any and all servicing notes related to your servicing of the above-referenced mortgage
loan from January 10, 2014.

3. Copies of any and all broker's price opinions you performed or otherwise obtained for the
above-referenced property in relation to the above-referenced mortgage loan.

4. The physical location of the original note related to the above-referenced mortgage loan.

5. A true and accurate copy of the original note related to the above-referenced mortgage loan.

6. The identity, address, and other relevant contact information for the custodian of the collateral
file containing the original collateral documents for the above-referenced mortgage loan,
including, but not limited to the original note.

7. A detailed copy of your last two (2) analyses of the escrow account of the mortgage.

8. A copy of an accurate and up-to-date reinstatement quote and/or reinstatement letter showing
the exact amount needed to cure any default or delinquency on the above-referenced loan as
well as a date through which such amount is to remain good and valid.

Best Regards, 

Whitney E. Kaster, Esq. 

Enclosure 

P.O. Box 6031040, 
Cleveland, OH 44103 

2 

dannlawcom 
(877) 475-8100
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(IDbank. 
� 

U.S. Bank Home Mortgage 
4801 Frederica Street 
Owensboro, KY 42301 

Mortgage Statement 
Statemen1 Date 
Account Number 

Scheduled Due Date 

02/07/201 9 
0 hf  O Home Mortgage 
�o•�sin8 Finance Age-n.cy 03/01/2019 

We may conlacl You if paymenl is not received by the scheduled due data_ 
0-726-62599-0006661 ·001 · 1 ·000-010-000-000 

1 1 1 1 1 1 J ,  I I, 1 1 I I  I I 1 hh l  1 [ I '  • 1 1 1 1 [ 1 l 1 1 I •  1 1 I I •  1 1 1 I [ 1 1 • 1 1 1 1 1  • 1 1 , , •I I 

KIM G I BSON 
DANNLAW 
PO BOX 6031 040 
CLEVELAND OH 441 03-8800 

Contact Information 800-365•7772 
Live Customer Support� Mon-Fri 7:00 am - 8:00 pm CT and S.al 8:00 �m • 2:00 prn CT 
Automated Services also available al this number 24 hours 
LTve Hearinglmpalred C'1s1omer Support: Monday-Friday, B:00 a.ni.-5:00 p.m. CT, 800-874-5563 
A lDOITTY machine Is requlrea when aE'.Uirig this numbs-r 
Correspondence Address 
U.S. Bank Home Mortgage 
P-O, Box 21 948 
Eagan. MN 551 21 
WebGite 

Notice of E.rror end Request for Information 
U.S_ Bank Home Mortgage P.O. Box 21 977 

Eagan, MN 551 21 
www.usbe.nkflomemortgage.com 

· Accoun-t Information
Property Addres& 1 6405 SUNNY GlENN AVE 

CLEVELAND OH 441 2B 
Outstanding Principal Balance (Not a Payoff Amount) 
lnlemst Rate 
MatLJrlty Dale
Other Balan�s 
Es.::row Advancs 
Recoverable Corporate Advance/RCA 
Suspan$e (UnappUed funds)1

$109,548-92
4.25000% 

09/2042 

$1 ,508.32
$1 ,603.00

$4 .22 

ff You Ari! EllperiEmcing FinaMl�l Dlff ic1.1lty; io Unlj.a HUO-certlil�d CDLmsell11g mganlzatlol'l in your araa,
conlac! HUD at 000-559-4287 m ,;Lslt the W:olIBit1;1 at 1WNt',llud.govloflJce:.l11sg/:J.ih!hcc!hG6.cfm. 

!transaction Activity: 
g�criptlon Due Date 
Payu,EJnt/Suspe:o.se 06/2019  
Dspt of HUO REP Pisb 09/20.19  

Date 
01/29/2019
02/04/2019

Total 
112 8- . 6 4

Prlnclpal 
21.:i . 0 5  

Loan D u a  Date 07/0112018 
.. If received alter D3I1 6/2019, $45.55 late lee may be charged_ 
Reinstatement Amount (as of 02/07/201 9) $1 0,905.1 3  
Please nots that alter 02/07/2019 additional fees. charges; and/or costs may 
acmus, so please contact us to obtain the updated amount, as appllcabte. 

Explanation of Total Amount Due .. 
PAYMENT FACTORS 

Past Due Payments 
Unpai� Lata Foes 
Recoverable Corporate Mvance (RCA) 

TOTAL AMOUNT DUE TO REINSTATE LOAN 
{as of 02/0712019) 

ACCELERATED AMOUNT (as of 02/06/201 9) 

$9,066.71 
$235.42 

$1 .603_00 

$1 0,905.1 3  

$1 1 5,855.78 

Please nole that after 02/07/201 9  additional fees, charges. and/or costs may 
accn.Je 1 so please contact us to obtBin tile u_pdatecl amount, as appl icable, 
"If received after 0:,/1B/2019, $45,55 lale fee may be charged. 

- Past Payment Breakdown · : .

Principal 
Interest 
Escrow 
suspense (Unapplled funds)1 

PAtD SINCE 
LAST STATEMENT 

$21 5.06 
$388_73 
$520.63 

$4.22 

PAID YEAR 
TO DATE 

$215_06 
$388.73 
$520.63 

$4,22 

Paymem bN:iakdriw repr.esenls currant year payment crn11it<H�tfon actlvft:i' appll�d t� !h� iJC-r.ount, wt,Cch maylncl1.tde a,:ljustrnl'J'nls 10 prioI· year transacli□ria. 

fnterest 
3 8 8 , 1 3  

Escrow 
520 . 6 3  
110 . 2 4 -

Fees/ 
RCA other 

Subsidy/ 
Repl Reserve Suspense 

4 . 22 

IMPORTANT M ESSAGES 

f1ufo��l�
l
���

t

, ��cE�1k 1:ie0��r6s��;1��ftJ ��8Pl�6i1�J� [��e����rif�a��eg���:
6
�1��d1f�i�1cf;���:b:�:ted compla int to: U.S. Bank, Atten1ion: Consumer Advooac,1, P.O. Box 

1Any parti al payments you make are not applied as the mortgage payment, but are instead held in your suspense account and not 
deducted from Total Amount Due. I f  you pay the balance of a partial pa'(ment, the funds wi l l  be applied to your mortgage payment or

� other balances due. P lease note: suspense appl ication rules may vary i you are active on a repayment or trial payment plan . 

°' 
;;; 
,;; � 
�,,

A suspense account is a repository for which part ial payments are retained unt i l  additional funds are received to equal a total month ly 
payment that may then be used to post a payment to you r  loan. 
----------------------------------------.. --------------------............ . _. __ ...................... _. __ , ________ .... , ... _ 
• • • Please Note :  If you are current ly  under a repayment agreement orHAM P trial period payment plan, !he monthly payment 
amount reflected on this statement may not reflect the agreed upon adjusted payment amount due for the m onth. P lease refer to 
your repayment agreement, trial period document, or contact our off ice if you are unsure of the amount you must rem it, 

Not ices of Error and Requests for Information 

Borrowers have certain r ights under Federal law related to resolving errors and requesting i nformation about their mortgage account. 
Notices of Error and Requests For I nformation must be directed ta U .S. Bank ,Attention: Co11sumer Advocacy

1 
P .O .  Box 21 977, Eagan, MN

551 21 . Your submission must be in  writing and include the name of each bo rrower, the loan number and a aescri ption of the error you 
bel i eve has occurred OR a request for specific Information regarding yo?r._mo rtgage loan . ______ ............... ___ .... ________________ _ 

' ·  " ' ,,", - ·, - - ' , . ;  , , .  ' l!ETACH AND RE;!,UR:f03QtToM POJtTIOli WITfl YIJURl'AYMEN:T ' , - - ' - - ' '"_, .. ' 

t!E3bank. �
ohfo 

�H-•.,-•-M-ort_9_a_ge- �fn����i 
Aoenc:y 

KIM G IBSON 

03/01 /201 9  $1 , 1 38.69 $0.00 $9,066_71  $D.00 $10 ,905. 1 31 
••rr:rymeni Pra�essmg cu\ofr lihll:l, tor p-Byrne:nls I11sd-e by mail, l:s 3-:(JU p.m. Can(l'f; I nine, lvlonciay ~ Friday:� 
Pi,lyrnol"lls. received arter tlllofl time will be applied lo your aCGaunt lhe next b�!3iJ71;:!SS \'.lriy. Lute (;hJrges msv 
Im r1ssessec! if pciymt:H'llS t.lm nol rei::1:.+�s::d ot1 1Irne as :;;J1cd�ed in the tc::nn& of your rnortg.age agreement P8ymen[s due □n a w1,,ekend or legal holi-dc1y �viii not bil- ci:.�o,;s�d a late charga ii received by cul.•Jff time tl1e
fnl!Dwing !Jusim,ss d�y P.aytnl?.-nl proc.es:sing r�uEofrtifTlOS n1f.lyv,7ry ii choosin.g n l t-or11p livepnymonl options 1ram \ I I • .:  
1hos.e lfsted .al:>ovs ._ ________________ ___, 

OVERN IGHT DELIVERY: □ C heck here if name, .address and/or phone oumber
chang{;!S have be,i:,ri mdjcatec! on mve rse �Pde.  

U.S .  Bank Home Mortgage 
CN-KY-MCDC 

U .8 .  Bank Home Mortgage 
CN-KY-MCDC 
4801 Frederica Street 
Owensboro, KY 42301 

Additional Principa l $ 
4801 Frederica Street 
Owensboro, KY 42301 ·7441 

l 1 1 l 1 1 l t l l , l 1 1 J • 1 1 1 l l [ , l , , , l , 1 1 1 1 ! 1 • • • 1 l l 1 l l l l l l 1 1 1 1 l 1 f l 1 ' i" ' I I '
9 

Addit ional Escrow $ 

Other (Please specify) $ 

Tota l  Amount Enclosed $

0 0 2 5 1 5 9 9 0 2 6 1 90 9 7 7  0 1 1 8 4 2 4 1  0 1 1 3 8 6 9 2  1 0 5 0 0 8 2 5  1 0 5 4 6 3 7 2 □ 
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[:!I3bank. U.S. Bank Home Mortgage 
4801 Frederica St reel 
Owensboro, KY 42301 

F.�
m

Home Mortgage 

0-726-62599-0006661 ·001-2-000-010-000-000 
KIM GIBSON 
DANNLAW 
PO BOX 603104D 
CLEVELAND OH 44103"8800 

Delinquency Notice 

Mortgage Statement 
Statement Date 
Account Number 
Scheduled Due Date 

02/07/2019 

03101/2019 
We may conlacl ycu II payment is not received by the scheduled due date. 
Loan Due Dale 0710112018 
"If received after 03116/2019, $45.55 late fee maybe charged. 
Reinstatement Amount (as of 02/07/2019) $10,905,13 
Please nole that atter 02/07/2019 additional fees, charges, and/or costs may 
accrue. so please contact us lo obtain the updated amount, as applicable. 

You are late on your mortgage payments. Failure to bring your loan current may result in fees and foreclosure• the loss of your home. 
As of 02/07/2019, you are 221 days delinquent on your mortgage loan. 
Recent Account Activity 

Payment Due 
02/01/2019 
01/01/2019 
12/01/2018 
11/01/2018 
10/01/201 B 
09/01/2018 

Amount 
$1,138.69 
$1,138.69 
$1,138.69 
$1,138.69 
$1,138.69 
$1,124.42 

Total Amount to Reinstate Loan $10,905. i 3 

As of 02/07/2019 

Please see Explanation of Tota! Amount Due for details, 

Dale Paid 
UNPAID 
UNPAID 
UNPAID 
UNPAID 
UNPAID 
UNPAID 

Please note tha1 after 02/0712019 additional fees, charges, and/or costs may accrue, so please contact us to obtain the 
updated amount, as applicable. 

If You Are Experiencing Financial Difficulty: See Account Information Box for information about loan counseling or 
assistance. 

You are active on a HAMP trial payment plan, 

Additional Messages 
�- --- �- �-- --- - � � ---

�1
U

I:!ii
m

�g��
t

l �J�c5i1k 1 :�i't1�es���1���nx s�g�pl��l�� l���z���ri1 �a��e��
r
��:e�l!�Rr�iiita�����b:;�led oomplalnt to: U.S. Bank, Attention: Ca11sum0r AdwcacyJ P.O. Box 

BEWARE OF FORECLOSURE RESCUE SCAMS 
The Office of the Comptroller of the Currency (OGG) has issued a Consumer Advisory to help homeowners avoid scams that claim to help 
them save their homes, but can cause them lo lose their homes and their money. Learn more by visiting the OGG website at 
occ.treas,gov/ftp/ADVISORY/2009"1,pdf. The OGG does advise that the most important thing you can clo to prevent scams is to work 
directly with your mortgage lender first. So, if you have questions about loan modification opt'1ons or how ta avoid foreclosure, please 
contact one of our Default Counselors toll-free at 800.365. 7900 or visit our website at usbankhomemortgage.com. 
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Case: 1:19-cv-00538 Doc #: 1-5 Filed: 03/11/19 1 of 7. Pagpai31BIT E

II1:1 Illinois l New Jersey l New York I Ohio

216-373-0539 Notice@DannLaw.com 216-373-0536
Telephone Email Fax

February 28, 2019

U.S. Bank
Attn: Escalation Center
P.O. Box 21977
Eagan, MN 55121

*Sent via CertifiedMail return receipt requested [7014 2120 0003 0671 9346]

In the Matter of:

Borrower's Name: Kim Gibson
Property Address: 16405 Sunny Glenn Ave., Cleveland, OH 44128
Mortgage Account No.:

**Ifresponding to this correspondence by e-mail, please send to notices@dannlaw.com

Re: Notice of error pursuant to 12 C.F.R. §1024.35(b)(11) for failure to properly respond to a

request for information in compliance with 12 C.F.R. §1024.36

Dear Sir or Madarn:

Please consider this letter to constitute a "notice oferror under 12 C.F.R. § 1024.35 ofRegulation X
of the Mortgage Servicing Act under the Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act (RESPA). The
written authority of the above-referenced borrower (the "Borrower") to our law firm for this
communication is enclosed for you reference and review and is incorporated herein by this reference.

You must acknowledge receipt of this notice within five (5) business days thereof. You must send
your response(s) to this notice within thirty (30) business days of receipt thereof.

On or about November 16, 2018, the Borrower sent a letter captioned "Request for Information
Pursuant to 12 C.F.R. § 1024.36" (the "RFI") to U.S. Bank via Certified U.S. Mail [Receipt No.:
7014 2120 0003 0668 3197]. A copy of the RFI is enclosed for your reference.

U.S. Bank sent correspondence in response to the RFI dated December 5, 2018 (the "Response").
The Response was deficient to respond to the RF1 as it failed to provide copies of any and all
servicing notes related to U.S. Bank's servicing of the above-referenced mortgage loan since January
10, 2014.

There are very limited circurnstances when a mortgage loan servicer is not required to provide
information related to the servicing of a mortgage loan requested by and through a request for
information issued pursuant to 12 C.F.R. § 1024.36.

Mailing Address DannLaw.com
PO Box 6031040 877-475-8100
Cleveland, OH 44103
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Specifically, 12 C.F.R. § 1024.36(f)(1) provides that a servicer does not have to comply with 12

C.F.R. § 1024.36(c) or 12 C.F.R. § 1024.36(d) if the request seeks substantially the sarne information
as a prior request, the information sought is confidential, proprietary, or privileged, the information is
not directly related to a borrower's specific mortgage loan account, or the request is overbroad or

unduly burdensome. Moreover, 12 C.F.R. § 1024.360)(2) provides that:

If a servicer determines that, pursuant to this paragraph (0, the
servicer is not required to comply with the requirements ofparagraphs
(c) and (d) of this section, the servicer shall notify the borrower of its
determination in writing not later than five days (excluding legal
public holidays, Saturdays, and Sundays) after making such
determination. The notice to the borrower shall set forth the basis
under paragraph (t)(1) of this section upon which the servicer has
made such determination.

By and through the Response, U.S. Bank generally stated lajdditional information or documents
you requested may be considered internal/confidential information and/or not relevant to an

individual mortgage loan or the servicing thereof; therefore, a subpoena would be required to release
such information."

It is improper for U.S. Bank to claim that the requested information is proprietary or confidential
such as to permit U.S. Bank to refrain frorn providing the requested information. Comment 1 to 12

C.F.R. § 1024.36(f)(1)00 provides illustrative examples as to what constitutes confidential,
proprietary, or privileged inforrnation for the purposes of requests for information pursuant to 12
C.F.R. § 1024.36:

Confidential, proprietary or privileged information may include
information requests relating to, for example:

Inforrnation regarding management or profitability of a

servicer, including information provided to investors in the
servicer.

ii. Compensation, bonuses, or personnel actions relating to

servicer personnel, including personnel responsible for

servicing a borrower's mortgage loan account;
iii. Records of examination reports, compliance audits, borrower

complaints, and internal investigations or external

investigations; or

iv. Information protected by the attorney-client privilege

None of the unfulfilled requests bear any resemblance to the types of requests for which the
Consumer Financial Protection Bureau provides guidance as to what constitutes a request that seeks

proprietary information. To the extent that proprietary information may be included within some of
the information and/or documents requested by and through the RFI, such information and/or
documentation can be withheld and/or redacted. The fact that some such information rnay be
contained within such documents does not wholly absolve U.S. Bank of their obligation to produce

Mailing Address Da n n Law. com

PO Box 6031040 877-475-8100

Cleveland, OH 44103
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information contained within such documents that is not proprietary. That is, for example, to the
extent that servicing notes may contain proprietary information, such information may be redacted,
but the fact that some information in the servicing notes may be proprietary does not allow for U.S.
Bank to refuse to provide any of the servicing notes for the loan as requested.

Regarding relevancy, it is unfathornable as to how U.S. Bank would be able to reasonably claim that
items such as servicing notes are not relevant to U.S. Bank's servicing business or specifically as to
the Borrower's mortgage loan account specifically referenced in the RFI.

In short, U.S. Bank has failed to provide any justifiable reason as to why they do not need to supply
the remaining outstanding information and documentation requests by and through the RFI.

Wherefore, the Borrower hereby alleges that U.S. Bank's actions, in failing to provide all of the
information requested by and through the RFI, constitute a willful violation of 12 C.F.R. § 1024.36.
The Borrowerfurther asserts that US. Bank's actions, as such, constitute an error in the servicinz of
the Borrower's rnortgage loan account pursuant to 12 C.F.R. 1024.35(b)(11).

As such, the Borrower hereby demands that U.S. Bank provide all the information and/or
documentation requested by and through the RFI, or, in the alternative, specifically provide a valid
justification as to why U.S. Bank will not supply the information requested by and through each of
the requests in the RFI.

Please correct this error as described herein and provide us with notification of the correction, the
date of the correction, and contact information for further assistance; or after conducting a reasonable
investigation and providing the Borrower, through our firm, with a notification that includes a

statement that the servicer has determined that no error occurred, a statement of the reason or reasons

for this determination, a statement of the Borrower's right to request documents relied upon by the
servicer in reaching its determination, inforrnation regarding how the Borrower can request such
documents, and contact information for further assistance.

Please also remit funds for restitution to the Borrower including but not limited to reimbursement of
legal fees and expenses incurred in the preparation and sending ofthis notice.

,c4e.F.IV a 1
1 E. Kastfi
res

Mailing Address DannLaw.corn
PO Box 6031040 877-475-8100
Cleveland, OH 44103
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Lt. Dann
• Illinois l New Jersey l New York l Ohio l OregonLaw

Telephone: 216-373-0539
Facsimile: 216-373-0636

Email: Notices@ DannLaw,com

In the Matter of:
Kim GibsonBorrower(s):

Property Address: 16405 Sunny Glen Avenue Cleveland OH 44128

mo„gage Loan No:

Re; Written Consent/Authorization for Requests for Information & Notices of Error

To Whom It May Concern:

I/We, the borrower(s), do hereby authorize and provide our written consent and authorization for

US Bank, the Servicer of the above-referenced loan, to fully
cooperate with, comply with, and provide any and all information requested or demanded by and through
any and all Requests for Information and/or Notices of Error pertaining to our loan, pursuant to the Real

Estate Settlement and Procedures Act (Regulation X) and/or the Truth in Lending Act (Regulation Z) which

may be sent by Attorneys on our behalf. Said counsel represents us in any and all pending or contemplated
legal rnatters concerning the above-referenced loan. Please respond to any and all such Requests and Notices

at tEe following address:

DannLaw
P.O. Box 6031040, Cleveland, OH 44103

Signed: A'1,$on Date: '11/06/2018

Print Name: Kim Gibson

Signed: Date: 11/06/2018

Print Name:

Melling Address DannLaw.com
PO Box 6031040 [877] 476-8100
Cleveland, Ohio 44103
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LIII Dann Illinois I New Jersey i New York I Ohio I Oregon- Law

Telephone: (216) 373-0539

Facsimile: (218) 373-0536
EmiI neflossrOdBnnhw.ccali

November 1, 2018

U.S. Bank
Attn: Consumer Advocacy
P.O. Box 21977

Eagan, MN 55121

*Sent via certifiedMail return receipt requested [7014 2120 0003 0683197]

In the Matter of:

Borrower's Name: Kim Gibson
Property Address: 16405 Suiiny Glenn Ave., Cleveland, OH 44128

Mortgage Account No.:

4".ff responding to this correspondence by e-rnail, please send to noticespdannlaw.com

R.e: Request for Information Pursuant to 12 C.F.R.. § 1024.36

Dear Sir or Madam:

This is a Request for Information related to your servicing of the above-referenced mortgage loan. All
references herein are to Regulation X of the Mortgage Servicing Act as amended by the Consumer
Financial Protection Bureau pursuant to the Dodd Frank Act, The written authority of the
above-referenced borrower (the "Borrower") for this request to our law firm is enclosed.

Pursuant to 12 C.F.R. § 1024.36(c), you must provide our office with a written response
acknowledging your receipt of this request withinfive () business days ofsuch. Pursuant to 12 C.F.R.
§ 1024,36(d)(ii)(2)(B), you rnust provide the information requested herein, infra, within thirty (30)
business days ofyour receipt of this request.

Please provide the following information within the time periods noted herein:

1. An exact reproduction of the life of loan mortgage transaction history for this loan from the
contract system of record from your electronic software program for this loan. For purposes of
identification, the life of loan transaction history means any software program or system by
which the servicer records the current mortgage balance, the receipt of all payments, the
assessment of any fate fees or charges, and the recording of any corporate advances for any fees
or charges including but not limited to property inspection fees, broker price opinion fees,

MallIng Address: itannicamoon
P.O. Box 6031040. Cleveland, OH 44103 (877) 475-8100
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1.!
legal fees, escrow fees, processing fees, technology fees, or any other collateral charge. Also, to

the extent this life of loan transaction history includes in numeric or alpha-numeric codes,

please attach a complete list of all such codes and state in plain English a short description for

each such code.

2. Copies of any and all servicing notes related to your servicing of the above-referenced mortgage
loan frorn January 10, 2014.

3. Copies of any and all broker's price opinions you performed or otherwise obtained for the

above-referenced property in relation to the above-referenced mortgage loan.

4. The physical location of the original note related to the above-referenced mortgage loan.

5. A true and accurate copy ofthe original note related to the above-referenced mortgage loan.

6. The identity, address, and other relevant contact inforrnation for the custodian of the collateral

file containing the original collateral docurnents for the above-referenced mortgage loan,
including, but not limited to the original note.

7. A detailed copy ofyour last two (2) analyses of the escrow account ofthe mortgage.

8. A copy of an accurate and up-to-date reinstatement quote and/or reinstatement letter showing
the exact amount needed to cure any default or delinquency on the above-referenced loan as

well as a date through which such amount is to remain good and valid.

Best Regards,

Whitney E. Kaster, Esq.

Enclosure

P.0, Box 6031040, dannlaw.com

Cleveland, OH 44103 (877) 476-8100



Illinois New Jersey New York Ohio ■ 
216-373-0539

Telephone

Notfces@DannLaw.com 

Email 

216-3 73-0536

Fax

February 20, 2019 

U.S. Bank 
Attention: Escalation Center 
P.O. Box #21977 
Eagan, MN 55121 

*Sent via Certified Mail return receipt requested {7014 2120 0003 0671 8631}

In the Matter of: 

Borrower's Name: 
Property Address: 

Mortgage Account No.: 

Lawrence Farrell 
1401 Priory Circle 
Winteraarden FL 34787 

**If responding to this correspondence by e-mail, please send to notices@dannlttw.com 

Re: Request for Information Pursuant to 12 C.F.R. § 1024.36 and 15 U.S.C. § 1641(f)(2) 

Dear Sir or Madam: 

This is a Request for Information related to your servicing of the mortgage loan of the above-named 
borrower. All references herein are to Regulation X of the Mortgage Servicing Act as amended by the 
Consumer Financial Protection Bureau pursuant to the Dodd Frank Act. The written authority of the 
above-referenced borrower for this request to our law firm is enclosed. 

Pursuant to 12 C.F.R. § 1024.36(d), you must respond to this request no later than ten {10) business 
d?tys after your receipt of such. 

Please provide the following information within the time periods noted, supra: 

1. The name, address, and appropriate contact information for the current owner
or assignee of the above-referenced mortgage loan.

a. If the above-referenced mortgage loan is held in a trust for which an
appointed trustee receives payments on behalf of such trust and Federal

Mailing Address 
PO Box 6031040 

Cleveland, OH 44103 

Dann Law.com 
[877] 475-8100

EXHIBIT F
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National Mortgage Association (Fannie Mae) or Federal Home Loan 
Mortgage Corporation (Freddie Mac) is the owner of such loan or the 
trustee of the securitization trust in which the loan is held, please also 
provide the name or number of the trust or pool in which such loan is 
held. 

2. The identity of and address for the master servicer of the above-referenced
mortgage loan.

3. The identity of and address for the current servicer of the above-referenced
mortgage loan.

Please be advised this request is also being made under 12 U.S.C. § 1641(£)(2) of the Truth in Lending 
Act (TILA). For each violation of TILA, you may be liable to the borrower for acrual damages, costs, 
attorney fees, and statutory damages of up to Four Thousand Dollars ($4,000.00). 

Best Regards, 

Whitney E. Kaster, Esq. 

Enclosure 

PO Box 6031040 

Cleveland, Ohio 44103 

2 

Dann Law.com 

[877] 475-8100
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Illinois New Jersey New York Ohio II 
216-373-0539

Telephone

Notices@DannLaw.com 

Email 

216-373-0536

Fax

In the Matter of: 
Borrower(s): Larry Farrell 

FL 34787 

Mortgage Loan No.: 

Re: Written Consent/Authorization for Requests for Information & Notices of Error 

To Whom It lvfay Concern: 

I/We, the borrower(s), do hereby authorize and provide our written consent and authorization for 
U.S. Bank the Servicer of the above-referenced loan, to fully 

cooperate with, comply with, and provide any and all information requested or demanded by and through any 

and all Requests for Information and/or Notices of Error perraining to our loan, pursuant to the Real Estate 
Settlement and Procedures Act (Regulation X) and/ or the Truth in Lending Act (Regulation Z) which may be 
sent by Attorneys on our behalf. Said counsel represents us in any and all pending or contemplated legal matters 
concerning the above-referenced loan. Please respond to any and all such Requests and Notices at the following 

address: 

DannLaw 
P.O. Box 6031040, Cleveland, OH 44103 

Signed: ____ /a_.,_ ......... _r.,..�1_f.1JJ __________ Date: . 02/01/2019

Prine Name: __ L_a_rr_c_y_F_a_r_re_ll ___________________________ _ 

Signed: __________________ Date: 

Print Name: -----��--�--�--------------------� 

Mailing Address 
PO Box 6031040 
Cleveland, OH 44103 

DannLaw.com 

[877] 475-8100
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Illinois I New Jersey I New York I Ohio

216-373-0539 Notices@DannLawcom 216-373-0536
Telephone Email Fax

February 20, 2019

U.S. Bank
Attention: Escalation Center
P.O. Box #21977
Eagan, MN 55121

*Sent via CertifiedMail return receipt requested [7014 2120 0003 0671 8660]

In the Matter of:

Borrower's Name: Lawrence Farrell
Property Address: 1401 Priory Circle

Winter arden, FL 34787
Mortgage Account No.:

'Ifresponding to this correspondence by e-mail, please send to notices(wdannlaw.com

Re: R.equest for Information Pursuant to 12 C.F.R. § 1024.36

Dear Sir or Madam:

This is a Request for Information related to your servicing of the above-referenced mortgage loan. All
references herein are to Regulation X of the Mortgage Servicing Act as amended by the Consumer
Financial Protection Bureau pursuant to the Dodd Frank Act. The written authority of the
above-referenced borrower (the "Borrowee) for this request to our law firm is enclosed.

Pursuant to 12 C.F.R. § 1024.36(c), you must provide our office with a written response
acknowledging your receipt of this request withinfive (5) business days ofsuch. Pursuant to 12 C.F.R.
§ 1024.36(d)(ii)(2)(B), you must provide the information requested herein, infra, within thirty (30)
business days ofyour receipt of this request.

Please provide the following information within the time periods noted, supra, regarding the
above-referenced loan (the "Loan"):

Mailing Address DannLaw.com
PO Box 6031040 [877] 475-8100
Cleveland, OH 44103
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1. Please state each date upon which you received a loss mitigation application,
whether complete or incomplete, from the Borrower regarding the Loan from
January 10, 2014 to the present.

2. Please provide a copy of any written correspondence that you sent to the
Borrower pursuant to or otherwise in compliance with 12 C.F.R. §
1024.41(b)(2)(i)(B) regarding the Loan from January 10, 2014 to the present.
In other words, please provide a copy of any written correspondence you sent

to the Borrower notifying the Borrower as to whether any submitted loss
mitigation application was complete or incomplete, and if incomplete, stating
what documentation and/or information was necessary to complete such
application.

3. Please state each date during the period from January 10, 2014, to the present
on which you received or otherwise came into possession of a complete loss
mitigation application from the Borrower. Please note that, pursuant to 12
C.F.R. § 1024.41(b)(1), a "complete loss mitigation application" is defined as

"an application in connection with which a servicer has received all the
information that the servicer requires from a borrower in evaluating
applications for the loss mitigation options available to the borrower."

4. Please provide a copy of any written correspondence that you sent to the
Borrower pursuant to or otherwise in compliance with 12 C.F.R. §
1024.41(c)(1)00 regarding the Loan from January 10, 2014 to the present. In
other words, please provide a copy of any written correspondence you sent to
the Borrower notifying the Borrower as to which loss mitigation options, if
any, you would offer the Borrower on behalf of the owner or assignee of the
mortgage.

5. Please provide a copy of any written correspondence that you sent to the
Borrower notifying them that the Loan is eligible to be considered for the
Home Affordable Modification Program.

6. Please provide a copy of all trial period payment plans, loan modification
agreements, or loss mitigation agreements otherwise that you have offered to
the Borrower, regardless of whether they were accepted or rejected by the
Borrower.

PO Box 6031040 DannLaw.com
Cleveland, Ohio 44103 [877] 475-8100

2
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7. Please state each date upon which you received an executed loss mitigation
agreement from the Borrower regarding the Loan from January 10, 2014 to the

present.

8. Please state each date upon which you received or otherwise came into

possession of an appeal of loss rnitigation eligibility from the Borrower
regarding the Loan from January 10, 2014 to the present.

9. Please provide a copy of any written correspondence that you sent to the
Borrower pursuant to or otherwise in compliance with 12 C.F.R. §
1024.41(h)(4) regarding the Loan from January 10, 2014 to the present. In
other words, provide a, copy of any written correspondence you sent to the
Borrower stating your determination ofwhether you would offer the Borrower
a loss mitigation option based upon an appeal ofyour denial of the Borrower's

eligibility for any loss mitigation option.

Best

Regards,,
Whitney E. Kaster, Esq.

Enclosure

PO Box 6031040 DannLaw.com
Cleveland, Ohio 44103 [877] 475-8100

3



Case: 1:19-cv-00538 Doc #: 1-7 Filed: 03/11/19 4 of 5. PagelD #: 45

1.11,1 Illinois I New Jersey I New York l Ohio i
216-373-0539 Notices@DannLawcom 216-373-0536Telephone Email Fax

In the Matter of:
Borrower(s): Larry Farrell

Property Address: 1401 Priory Circle Wintergarden FL 34787

Mortgage Loan No.:11M
Re: Written Consent/Authorization for Requests for Information & Notices ofError

To Whom It May Concern:

I/We, the borrower(s), do hereby authorize and provide our written consent and authorization for
U.S. Bank, the Servicer of the above-referenced loan, to fully

cooperate with, comply with, and provide any and all information requested or demanded by and through any
and all Requests for Information and/or Notices of Error pertaining to our loan, pursuant to the Real Estate
Settlement and Procedures Act (Regulation X) and/or the Truth in Lending Act (Regulation Z) which may be
sent by Attorneys on our behalf. Said counsel represents us in any and all pending or conternplated legal matters

concerning the above-referenced loan. Please respond to any and all such Requests and Notices at the following
address:

DannLaw
P.O. Box 6031040, Cleveland, OH 44103

Signed: tP° 02/01/2019Date:

Print Name: Larry Farrell

Signed: Date:

Print Name:

Mailing Address
DannLaw.comPO Box 6031040

[8771 475-8100Cleveland, OH 44103
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Illinois l New Jersey l New York l Ohio

216-373-0539 Notices@DannLaw.com 216-373-0536
Telephone Email Fax

February 20, 2019

U.S. Bank
Attention: Escalation Center
P.O. Box #21977
Eagan, MN 55121

*Sent via Certzfied Mail return receipt requested [7014 2120 0003 06-71 86.84]

In the Matter of:

Borrower's Narne: Lawrence Farrell
Property Address: 1401 Priory Circle

Winter arden, FL 34787
Mortgage Account No.:

**If responding to this correspondence by e-mail, please send to noticesodannlaw.com

Re: Request for Information Pursuant to 12 C.F.R. § 1024.36

Dear Sir or Madam:

This is a Request for Information related to your servicing of the above-referenced mortgage loan. All references
herein are to Regulation X of the Mortgage Servicing Act as amended by the Consumer Financial Protection
Bureau pursuant to the Dodd Frank Act. The written authority of the above-referenced borrower (the
"Borrowee) for this request to our law firm is enclosed.

Pursuant to 12 C.F.R. § 1024.36(e), you must provide our office with a written response acknowledging your
receipt of this request within five (5) business days of such. Pursuant to 12 C.F.R. § 1024.36(d)(ii)(2)(B), you
must provide the information requested herein, infra, within thirty (30) business days of your receipt of this
request.

Please provide the following information within the time periods noted herein:

1. An exact reproduction of the life of loan mortgage transaction history for this loan
from the contract system of record from your electronic software program for this
loan. For purposes of identification, the life of loan transaction history means any
software program or systern by which the servicer records the current mortgage

Mailing Address DannLaw.com
PO Box 6031040 [877] 475-8100
Cleveland, OH 44103
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balance, the receipt of all payments, the assessment of any late fees or charges, and the
recording of any corporate advances for any fees or charges including but not limited
to property inspection fees, broker price opinion fees, legal fees, escrow fees, processing
fees, technology fees, or any other collateral charge. Also, to the extent this life of loan
transaction history includes in numeric or alpha-numeric codes, please attach a

complete list of all such codes and state in plain English a short description for each
such code.

2. Copies of any and all servicing notes related to your servicing of the above-referenced
mortgage loan frorn January 10, 2014.

3. Copies of any and all broker's price opinions you performed or otherwise obtained for
the above-referenced property in relation to the above-referenced mortgage loan.

4. The physical location of the original note related to the above-referenced mortgage
loan.

5. A true and accurate copy ofthe original note related to the above-referenced mortgage
loan.

6. The identity, address, and other relevant contact information for the custodian of the
collateral file containing the original collateral documents for the above-referenced
mortgage loan, including, but not limited to the original note.

7. A detailed copy ofyour last two (2) analyses of the escrow account ofthe mortgage.

8. A copy of an accurate and up-to-date reinstatement quote and/or reinstatement letter

showing the exact amount needed to cure any default or delinquency on the
above-referenced loan as well as a date through which such amount is to rernain good
and valid.

Best Regards,

Whitney E. Kaster, Esq.

Enclosure

PO Box 6031040 DannLaw.corn
Cleveland, Ohio 44103 [877] 475-8100

2
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Illinois 1 New Jersey 1 New York 1 Ohio

216-373-0539 Notices@DannLaw.com 216-373-0536
Telephone Email Fax

In the Matter of:
llBorrower(s): LarryFarrePropertyAddress: 1401 Priory Circle Wintergarden FL 34787

Mortgage Loan No.:.1111.1
Re: Written Consent/Authorization for Requests for Inforrnation & Notices ofError

To Whom It May Concern:

I/We, the borrower(s), do hereby authorize and provide our written consent and authorization for
U.S. Bank, the Servicer of the above-referenced loan, to fully

cooperate with, comply with, and provide any and all information requested or demanded by and through any
and all Requests for Information and/or Notices of Error pertaining to our loan, pursuant to the Real Estate
Settlement and Procedures Act (Regulation X) and/or the Truth in Lending Acr (Regulation Z) which may be

sent by Attorneys on our behalf. Said counsel represents us in any and all pending or contemplated legal matters

concerning the above-referenced loan. Please respond to any and all such Requests and Notices at the following
address:

DannLaw
P.O. Box 6031040, Cleveland, OH 44103

toP Date: 02/01/2019Signed:

Print Name: Larry Farrell

Signed: Date:

Print Name:

Maiiing Address DannLaw.com
PO Box 6031040

[877] 475-8100Cleverand, OH 44103
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OHIO

I. Civil Categories: (Please check one category only).

1. General Civil
 2. Administrative Review/Social Security
 3. Habeas Corpus Death Penalty

*If under Title 28, §2255, name the SENTENCING JUDGE:

          CASE NUMBER:

II. RELATED OR REFILED CASES.  See LR 3.1 which provides in pertinent part: "If an action is filed or removed to this Court

and assigned to a District Judge after which it is discontinued, dismissed or remanded to a State court, and
subsequently refiled, it shall be assigned to the same Judge who received the initial case assignment without regardfor
the place of holding court in which the case was refiled.  Counsel or a party without counsel shall be responsible for
bringing such cases to the attention of the Court by responding to the questions included on the Civil Cover Sheet."

This action RELATED to another PENDING civil case REFILED

If applicable, please indicate on page 1 in section VIII, the name of the Judge and case number.

III. In accordance with Local Civil Rule 3.8, actions involving counties in the Eastern Division shall be filed at any of  the
divisional offices therein.  Actions involving counties in the Western Division shall be filed at the Toledo office. For the
purpose of determining the proper division, and for statistical reasons, the following information is requested.

ANSWER ONE PARAGRAPH ONLY. ANSWER PARAGRAPHS 1 THRU 3 IN ORDER.  UPON FINDING WHICH
PARAGRAPH APPLIES TO YOUR CASE, ANSWER IT AND STOP.

(1) Resident defendant. If the defendant resides in a county within this district, please set forth the name of such
county
COUNTY:
Corporation For the purpose of answering the above, a corporation is deemed to be a resident of that county in which
it has its principal place of business in that district.

(2) Non-Resident defendant. If no defendant is a resident of a county in this district, please set forth the county
wherein the cause of action arose or the event complained of occurred.

COUNTY:

(3) Other Cases. If no defendant is a resident of this district, or if the defendant is a corporation not having a principle
place of business within the district, and the cause of action arose or the event complained of occurred outside
this district, please set forth the county of the plaintiff's residence.

COUNTY:

IV. The Counties in the Northern District of Ohio are divided into divisions as shown below.  After the county is
determined in Section III, please check the appropriate division.

EASTERN DIVISION

  AKRON (Counties: Carroll, Holmes, Portage, Stark, Summit, Tuscarawas and Wayne)
  CLEVELAND (Counties: Ashland, Ashtabula, Crawford, Cuyahoga, Geauga, Lake, 

Lorain, Medina and Richland)
YOUNGSTOWN (Counties: Columbiana, Mahoning and Trumbull)

WESTERN DIVISION

  TOLEDO (Counties: Allen, Auglaize, Defiance, Erie, Fulton, Hancock, Hardin, Henry, 
 Huron, Lucas, Marion, Mercer, Ottawa, Paulding, Putnam, Sandusky, Seneca
 VanWert, Williams, Wood and Wyandot)
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JS 44 Reverse  (Rev. 06/17)

INSTRUCTIONS FOR ATTORNEYS COMPLETING CIVIL COVER SHEET FORM JS 44

Authority For Civil Cover Sheet

The JS 44 civil cover sheet and the information contained herein neither replaces nor supplements the filings and service of pleading or other papers as
required by law, except as provided by local rules of court.  This form, approved by the Judicial Conference of the United States in September 1974, is
required for the use of the Clerk of Court for the purpose of initiating the civil docket sheet.  Consequently, a civil cover sheet is submitted to the Clerk of
Court for each civil complaint filed.  The attorney filing a case should complete the form as follows:

I.(a) Plaintiffs-Defendants.  Enter names (last, first, middle initial) of plaintiff and defendant.  If the plaintiff or defendant is a government agency, use
only the full name or standard abbreviations.  If the plaintiff or defendant is an official within a government agency, identify first the agency and 
then the official, giving both name and title.

   (b) County of Residence.  For each civil case filed, except U.S. plaintiff cases, enter the name of the county where the first listed plaintiff resides at the 
time of filing.  In U.S. plaintiff cases, enter the name of the county in which the first listed defendant resides at the time of filing.  (NOTE: In land 
condemnation cases, the county of residence of the "defendant" is the location of the tract of land involved.)

   (c) Attorneys.  Enter the firm name, address, telephone number, and attorney of record.  If there are several attorneys, list them on an attachment, noting
in this section "(see attachment)".

II.  Jurisdiction.  The basis of jurisdiction is set forth under Rule 8(a), F.R.Cv.P., which requires that jurisdictions be shown in pleadings. Place an "X" 
in one of the boxes.  If there is more than one basis of jurisdiction, precedence is given in the order shown below.
United States plaintiff.  (1) Jurisdiction based on 28 U.S.C. 1345 and 1348.  Suits by agencies and officers of the United States are included here.
United States defendant.  (2) When the plaintiff is suing the United States, its officers or agencies, place an "X" in this box.
Federal question.  (3) This refers to suits under 28 U.S.C. 1331, where jurisdiction arises under the Constitution of the United States, an amendment 
to the Constitution, an act of Congress or a treaty of the United States.  In cases where the U.S. is a party, the U.S. plaintiff or defendant code takes 
precedence, and box 1 or 2 should be marked.
Diversity of citizenship.  (4) This refers to suits under 28 U.S.C. 1332, where parties are citizens of different states.  When Box 4 is checked, the 
citizenship of the different parties must be checked. (See Section III below; NOTE: federal question actions take precedence over diversity 
cases.)

III.  Residence (citizenship) of Principal Parties.  This section of the JS 44 is to be completed if diversity of citizenship was indicated above.  Mark this
section for each principal party.

IV. Nature of Suit.  Place an "X" in the appropriate box.  If there are multiple nature of suit codes associated with the case, pick the nature of suit code 
that is most applicable.  Click here for: Nature of Suit Code Descriptions.

V. Origin.  Place an "X" in one of the seven boxes.
Original Proceedings.  (1) Cases which originate in the United States district courts.
Removed from State Court.  (2) Proceedings initiated in state courts may be removed to the district courts under Title 28 U.S.C., Section 1441.
When the petition for removal is granted, check this box.
Remanded from Appellate Court.  (3) Check this box for cases remanded to the district court for further action.  Use the date of remand as the filing 
date.
Reinstated or Reopened.  (4) Check this box for cases reinstated or reopened in the district court.  Use the reopening date as the filing date.
Transferred from Another District.  (5) For cases transferred under Title 28 U.S.C. Section 1404(a).  Do not use this for within district transfers or 
multidistrict litigation transfers.
Multidistrict Litigation – Transfer.  (6) Check this box when a multidistrict case is transferred into the district under authority of Title 28 U.S.C. 
Section 1407. 
Multidistrict Litigation – Direct File.  (8) Check this box when a multidistrict case is filed in the same district as the Master MDL docket. 
PLEASE NOTE THAT THERE IS NOT AN ORIGIN CODE 7.  Origin Code 7 was used for historical records and is no longer relevant due to 
changes in statue.

VI. Cause of Action.  Report the civil statute directly related to the cause of action and give a brief description of the cause. Do not cite jurisdictional 
statutes unless diversity.  Example: U.S. Civil Statute: 47 USC 553  Brief Description: Unauthorized reception of cable service

VII. Requested in Complaint.  Class Action.  Place an "X" in this box if you are filing a class action under Rule 23, F.R.Cv.P.
Demand.  In this space enter the actual dollar amount being demanded or indicate other demand, such as a preliminary injunction.
Jury Demand.  Check the appropriate box to indicate whether or not a jury is being demanded.

VIII. Related Cases.  This section of the JS 44 is used to reference related pending cases, if any.  If there are related pending cases, insert the docket 
numbers and the corresponding judge names for such cases.

Date and Attorney Signature.  Date and sign the civil cover sheet.
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AO 440 (Rev. 12/09)  Summons in a Civil Action

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
for the

__________ District of __________ 

)
)
)
)
)
)
)

Plaintiff

v. Civil Action No.

Defendant

SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION

To: (Defendant’s name and address)

A lawsuit has been filed against you.

Within 21 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it) — or 60 days if you
are the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United States described in Fed. R. Civ.
P. 12 (a)(2) or (3) — you must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of
the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.  The answer or motion must be served on the plaintiff or plaintiff’s attorney,
whose name and address are:

If you fail to respond, judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint. 
You also must file your answer or motion with the court.

CLERK OF COURT

Date:
Signature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk

Kim Gibson, et al.

U.S. Bank, National Association

U.S. BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION
c/o Andrew Cecere, C.E.O.
800 Nicollet Mall
Minneapolis, MN 55402

Marc E. Dann
DannLaw
2728 Euclid Ave., Suite 300
Cleveland, Ohio 44115
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AO 440 (Rev. 12/09)  Summons in a Civil Action (Page 2)

Civil Action No.

PROOF OF SERVICE

(This section should not be filed with the court unless required by Fed. R. Civ. P. 4 (l))

This summons for (name of individual and title, if any)

was received by me on (date) .

I personally served the summons on the individual at (place)

on (date) ; or

I left the summons at the individual’s residence or usual place of abode with (name)

, a person of suitable age and discretion who resides there,

on (date) , and mailed a copy to the individual’s last known address; or

I served the summons on (name of individual) , who is

 designated by law to accept service of process on behalf of (name of organization)

on (date) ; or

I returned the summons unexecuted because ; or

Other (specify):

.

My fees are $ for travel and $ for services, for a total of $ .

I declare under penalty of perjury that this information is true.

Date:
Server’s signature

Printed name and title

Server’s address

Additional information regarding attempted service, etc:

0.00
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ClassAction.org
This complaint is part of ClassAction.org's searchable class action lawsuit database and can be found in this 
post: Consumers Claim U.S. Bank Provided Non-Operational P.O. Box as Address for Notice of Error 
Disputes

https://www.classaction.org/news/consumers-claim-u.s.-bank-provided-non-operational-p.o.-box-as-address-for-notice-of-error-disputes
https://www.classaction.org/news/consumers-claim-u.s.-bank-provided-non-operational-p.o.-box-as-address-for-notice-of-error-disputes



